












































































941 Marcon Boulevard
Suite 801
Allentown, PA 18109
Main: 877 627 3772
http://colliersengineering.com

October 14, 2024

Kimberly Lymanstall, Township Secretary/Assistant Treasurer 
Hanover Township Northampton County
3630 Jacksonville Road
Bethlehem, PA 18017

4000-4030 Airport Road – Extension Request
Northgate 1- 2-lot Subdivision, Northgate 1 Land Development, Northgate 1 Lot Consolidation Plan, and 
4000-4030 Airport Road Lot Consolidation & Land Development Plan
Colliers Engineering & Design Project No. 21007876A 

Dear Ms. Lymanstall,

In accordance with Municipalities Planning Code we request a one hundred and eighty (180) 
calendar day extension for the following items:

Northgate 1- 2-lot Subdivision – Improvements Deadline
Northgate 1 Land Development – MPC Deadline
Northgate 1 Lot Consolidation Plan – Record Plans Conditions Deadline
4000-4030 Airport Road Lot Consol. & Land Dev. – MPC Deadline

If the extensions are granted, the deadlines would be extended to April 30, 2025. 

Please let me know if you have any questions, or if you need any additional information. 

Sincerely,

Colliers Engineering & Design, Inc. 
(DBA Maser Consulting)

C. Richard Roseberry, P.E., AICP 
Senior Principal/Regional Manager



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Lehigh & Northampton County Municipal Officials and Authority Representatives, 
We are writing to inform you that on Friday, September 6, 2024, the Federal Emergency Management Agency 
(FEMA) notified us of the approval of the 2024 Lehigh Valley Hazard Mitigation Plan, granting it the status of 
“Approved Pending Adoption” (APA). This designation means that the Plan meets all of FEMA’s and the 
Pennsylvania Emergency Management Agency’s (PEMA) criteria for a current Hazard Mitigation Plan. 
Since land use authority resides with the municipalities, the Plan will not take effect until one of the fifty-nine 
(59) participating municipalities in Lehigh or Northampton counties formally adopts it. Once adopted by 
resolution at a municipal board meeting, the Plan will be effective for five (5) years, starting from the date of 
that first municipal adoption. 
Municipalities and participating authorities MUST adopt the Plan within one (1) year of the APA designation—
by September 5, 2025—to remain eligible for hazard mitigation funding. Failure to adopt by the deadline will 
result in the loss of eligibility for both the municipality and its residents or non-profits for the following 
programs: 

• Hazard Mitigation Assistance (HMA) grants 
• Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP) 
• Flood Mitigation Assistance (FMA) 
• Building Resilient Infrastructure in Communities (BRIC) 
• Swift Current 
• Congressionally Directed Spending (CDS) funds 

o Note: Participating Authorities will also be ineligible for these programs if the Plan is not 
adopted by their respective Boards. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Highlights of the 2024 Lehigh Valley Hazard Mitigation Plan: 
• High Hazard Potential Dam (HHPD) Section: This new section meets and exceeds FEMA 

requirements, making entities eligible to apply for HHPD grants. This section is expected to become a 
required part of future Hazard Mitigation Plans. 

• Authority Participation: Three (3) participating authorities—Lehigh Valley Planning Commission 
(LVPC), Lehigh-Northampton Airport Authority (LNAA), and Lehigh County Authority (LCA)—have 
added annexes to the Plan. This is a first for the Lehigh Valley Plan and many counties within the 
Commonwealth. These annexes will strengthen the Authorities’ cases for future grant applications, and 
they must be formally adopted by each of their respective Boards. 

We want to express our gratitude to the municipalities and authorities that have worked diligently on updating 
and constructing annexes for their communities. While hazard mitigation may often be overlooked, the strong 
participation across municipalities, authorities, and stakeholders within the Counties demonstrates its continued 
importance. 

Key Items of Importance: 
• Attached to this email is a resolution template for your Board’s use when adopting the Plan. 
• Annual Plan review meetings (mandated by FEMA) will be held each September/October. 
• You can find your annex, the Lehigh Valley Master Plan, and all appendices at the following sites: 

o https://ncem-pa.org/2024-mitigation-plan/ or 
o https://www.lehighcounty.org/Departments/Emergency-Management-9-1-1/Hazard-Mitigation-Plan 

REMINDER: 
Once your municipality or authority formally adopts the Hazard Mitigation Plan, please forward a 
signed copy of the resolution to your county Co-Chair. This information will be submitted to PEMA and 
FEMA to ensure your eligibility for potential grant funding. 

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact your respective Co-Chair or Point-of-Contact using the 
information below. 

Thank you for your continued cooperation! 
 
 

 

Thomas E. Guth, Jr. 
Northampton County Emergency Management 

100 Gracedale Ave 
Nazareth, PA 18064 

Office: 610-746-3194 x3228 
Fax: 610-746-3199 

tguth@ncem-pa.org 
www.ncem-pa.org 

Kevin McGowan 
Lehigh County Office of Emergency Management 

640 W. Hamilton Street, 8th Floor 
Allentown, PA 18101 

Cell 484-735-3628 
Desk 610-782-4601 

kevinmcgowan@lehighcounty.org 
www.ema.lehighcounty.org 

https://ncem-pa.org/2024-mitigation-plan/
https://www.lehighcounty.org/Departments/Emergency-Management-9-1-1/Hazard-Mitigation-Plan
mailto:tguth@ncem-pa.org
http://www.ncem-pa.org/
mailto:kevinmcgowan@lehighcounty.org
http://www.ema.lehighcounty.org/


Hanover Township, Northampton County 

Lehigh Valley 2024 Hazard Mitigation Plan Update 
 

Resolution No. 2024 - 27 

 
 

WHEREAS, the Township of Hanover, Northampton, Pennsylvania is most vulnerable to 

natural and non-natural hazards which may result in loss of life and property, economic 

hardship, and threats to public health and safety, and 

WHEREAS, Section 322 of the Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 (DMA 2000) requires State 

and local governments to develop and submit for approval to the President a mitigation 

plan that outlines processes for identifying their respective natural hazards, risks, and 

vulnerabilities, and 

WHEREAS, the Township of Hanover acknowledges the requirements of Section 322 of 

DMA 2000 to have an approved Hazard Mitigation Plan as a prerequisite to receiving 

post-disaster Hazard Mitigation Grant Program funds, and 

WHEREAS, the Lehigh Valley 2024 Hazard Mitigation Plan has been developed by 

Lehigh County Emergency Services and the Northampton County Emergency 

Management Services in cooperation with other county departments, and officials and 

citizens of Township of Hanover, and 

WHEREAS, a public involvement process consistent with the requirements of DMA 2000 

was conducted to develop the Lehigh Valley 2024 Hazard Mitigation Plan, and 

WHEREAS, the Lehigh Valley 2024 Hazard Mitigation Plan recommends mitigation 

activities that will reduce losses to life and property affected by natural hazards that face 

the County and its municipal governments, 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the governing body for the Township of 

Hanover: 

• The Lehigh Valley 2024 Hazard Mitigation Plan is hereby adopted as the official 

Hazard Mitigation Plan of the Township of Hanover and 

• The respective officials and agencies identified in the implementation strategy of 

the Lehigh Valley 2024 Hazard Mitigation Plan are hereby directed to implement 

the recommended activities assigned to them. 

 

ADOPTED, this 22nd day of October 2024 

ATTEST:    HANOVER TOWNSHIP, NORTHAMPTON COUNTY  

 

_______________________ __________________________________________ 

Kimberly R. Lymanstall,  Susan A. Lawless, Esq. Chair – Board of Supervisors 
Township Secretary 
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